
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DOWNTOWN WINDSOR BIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

 

Date: Thursday, December 14, 2023 

Time: 5:30 PM 

 

Location: DWBIA Offices, 484 Pelissier Street 

 

DIRECTORS: 
 
Bars & Nightclubs: Andrew Corbett 
 
Commercial Property Owner/Developer: Ray Blanchard 
 
Hotel/Tourism/ Retail: Sikander (Sunny) Bhatti 
 
Member at Large: Jennie Atkins 
 
Professional Services: Chris MacLeod 
 
Restaurant (licensed): Olivia Holt 
 
Restaurant (unlicensed): Ron Balla 
 
Retail: Misty Adams 
 
Ward 3: Councillor Renaldo Agostino 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

• Reading of Land Acknowledgement 
 

We [I] would like to begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is the traditional 
territory of the Three Fires Confederacy of First Nations, which includes the Ojibwa, the 
Odawa, and the Potawatomi. The City of Windsor honours all First Nations, Inuit and Métis 
peoples and their valuable past and present contributions to this land. 

 
• Adoption of the distributed agenda 

 
  



 
2. DISCLOSURE OF PERCUNIARY INTEREST 
 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
 

• Minutes of Board of Directors meeting held on November 28, 2023 
• Minutes of combined Striking committees meeting held on December 5, 2023 

 
 

4. REGULAR BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

o Benches - update 

o 2024 Membership Budget Meeting 

o Holiday Giveaway – update 

o Grants 

o Masonic Temple – January 20, 2024 

 

o Motions from Board of Director’s meeting held on November 28, 2023 

 Benches – Budget for arms 

 2024 Budget – Approved 
 

  



 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

 
6. UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

A quorum of five (5) voting members is required for DWBIA Board Meetings 

 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Board of Directors Meeting I November 28, 2023 
 

1 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

MEETING: Board of Directors 

DATE: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 

TIME: 6:30 PM 

LOCATION: 484 Pelissier Street 

ATTENDEES: Andrew Corbett, Chris MacLeod, Misty Adams, Olivia Holt, Ray Blanchard, 
Sunny Bhatti, Councillor Renaldo Agostino 

REGRETS: Jennie Atkins, Ron Balla 

STAFF: Debi Croucher, Janice Dyett 
 
 

Agenda and Discussion Responsibility of: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. MacLeod opened the meeting at 6:36. 
 
Reading of Land Acknowledgement. 
 
Distributed agenda was adopted by Ms. Holt, seconded by  
Mr. Corbett. 

 

Administration 
 

Administration 
 

Board of Directors 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 
 
None. 

 

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Board of Directors meeting held on October 
24, 2023; the Striking Committees meeting on November 9, 
2023, and the Executive Committee meeting on November 14, 
2023 were adopted by Mr. Agostino, seconded by Mr. Corbett. 
Approved by all. 
 

 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Board of Directors Meeting I November 28, 2023 
 

2 | P a g e  

• Benches 
 

o Administration noted the cost to manufacture and install 
arms for the remaining benches and the time frame for 
manufacture and installation would be approximately be 
the end of January 2024. 
 

o Motion made by Mr. Blanchard to “approve a budget up 
to $7000 to add arms to the remaining benches.” 
 

o The Motion was seconded by Mr. Bhatti, and approved.  
 

 

• Cigarette Bins  
 

o Administration confirmed that the cigarette ballot bins 
had arrived.  
 

o Discussion surrounded the final 6 questions and 
installation locations.  
 

o The questions will be printed, installed and a news 
conference will be arranged for late in the week of 
December 4, 2023. 

 
 
• Santa Claus Parade 
 

o Administration spoke to the number of floats and bands 
registered for the parade.    
 

o Administration noted that hot chocolate stations would 
be set up in the vicinity of Maiden Lane as well as close 
to the Chrysler Building. 
 

o Administration also noted that The Downtown Mission 
would be setting up a tent with roasted chestnuts close 
to the Chrysler Building. 
 

 

• Winter Fest  
 

o Administration noted that installation of holiday window 
decorations has been widely accepted, with numerous 
businesses participating. 
 

o Administration noted the number of vendors registered 
for the Holiday Market.  The Market will run from 3-8pm 
at the Pelissier Street Parking Garage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration  
 
 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Board of Directors Meeting I November 28, 2023 
 

3 | P a g e  

 
o Administration spoke to the Swift-Mas Christmas 

Contest and noted that is to begin on December 2 and 
run to December 27, 2023.  
 

o Administration noted that the premise is to make a 
purchase at any downtown business, scan the QR code, 
upload your receipt, and be entered to win.   

 
 

• Security Cameras 
 

o Administration noted that there is a possible grant that 
the DWBIA can apply for to help with the cost of security 
cameras.   

 
o Administration noted that the deadline to apply is 

December 12, 2023. 
 

 
• Windsor Eats Farmers’ Market 

 
o Administration noted that the DWBIA was contacted by 

Windsor Eats, asking if they could use our legal 
documents as templates for a Farmers’ Market that they 
are hoping to run on Sundays in the next year.  

 
o Discussion surrounded the size of the market that they 

would be able to host and whether this would or could 
impact our Downtown Windsor Farmers’ Market.  

 
o The issue was voted upon and denied, 100%. 

 

 
• Recycling in the BIA’s 
 

o Administration noted that we received notice from the 
City that, effective August 2024, the City will transition 
the collection of recycling materials to Producers. 
 

o Administration noted that they City had requested a list 
of all of the business locations from the BIA’s. The 
purpose of this is to negotiate the collection of business 
recycling with the Producers. 
 

o Administration noted that if this is agreement is not 
successful, the individual BIA’s may have to consider 
paying for recycling in their respective business districts.  

 
Administration 

 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 

 
  



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Board of Directors Meeting I November 28, 2023 
 

4 | P a g e  

 
 

 

• Financial Statements 
 

o Board of Directors approved the 2022 Financial 
Statements of the Downtown Windsor Business 
Improvement Association, as presented. 

 
 
• 2024 DWBIA Budget  
 

o Administration noted that the budget for 2024 is due for 
submission to the City by December 7, 2023. 
 

o Discussion surrounded having an AGM towards the end 
of January 2024, presenting the budget, and discussing 
steps to improve the downtown ensued 
 

o Mr. Agostino made the motion “to approve the 2024 
budget as presented.” 
 

o The Motion was seconded by Mr. MacLeod, and 
approved.  

 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 

UPCOMING MEETING DATES 
 

• DWBIA Combined Marketing & Events and Infrastructure & 
Development Committees 
Tuesday, December 5, 2023 
 

• DWBIA Board of Directors 
Thursday, December 14, 2023 
 

• Holiday Party 
Thursday. December 14, 2023 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting adjourned at 8:27pm 
 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Striking Committees Meeting I December 5, 2023 
 

1 | P a g e  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

MEETING: Combined Striking Committees  

DATE: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 

TIME: 5:30 PM 

LOCATION: 484 Pelissier Street 

ATTENDEES: Andrew Corbett, Chris MacLeod, Misty Adams, Ray Blanchard, Sunny Bhatti, Olivia 
Holt, Councillor Renaldo Agostino 

REGRETS: Jennie Atkins, Ron Balla 

STAFF: Debi Croucher, Janice Dyett 
 
 

Agenda and Discussion Responsibility of: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. MacLeod opened the meeting at 5:41 pm 
 
Reading of Land Acknowledgement. 
 
Distributed agenda was adopted by Ms. Adams, seconded by  
Mr. Agostino. 

 

Administration 
 

Administration 
 

Board of Directors 
 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 
 
None. 

 

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
 
Adoption of the Minutes of the combined Marketing & Events and 
Infrastructure & Development Striking committees held on November 
9, 2023 was adopted by Mr. Agostino and seconded by Mr. Corbett. 
 

 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 

  



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Striking Committees Meeting I December 5, 2023 
 

2 | P a g e  

REGULAR BUSINESS ITEMS  
 

• Benches – update 
 

o Administration noted that a motion was made at the 
November 28, 2023 Board of Directors meeting to approve 
up to $7,000 to add arms to the remaining benches.  

 
o Administration noted the hope is to have the arms 

manufactured by year end and installed early in the new 
year.   

 
 

• Cigarette Bins – update 
 

o Administration noted that the questions have been printed 
and installed on the Cigarette Ballot Bins. 
 

o Administration noted that the bins are to be installed in six 
downtown locations on Thursday, December 7 between  
6:00-9:00am. 
 

o Administration noted that a news conference will take place 
on Thursday, December 7 at 10:30am at The Loose Goose.   
 

o Administration noted that there is an area on the DWBIA 
website where the public can suggest questions to pose on 
the ballot bins. 

 
 

• Santa Claus Parade 
 

o Administration noted that there was an excellent turnout for 
the event and how wonderful it was to see people of all ages 
downtown enjoying the event.  
 

o Discussion surrounded whether there was a way to 
determine economic impact during the hours of the parade. 
Administration noted the only way to make a determination 
would be to approach each individual business and ask for 
their stats for that time frame.  Administration also noted that 
many businesses are not open to sharing any information.   
 

o Mr. MacLeod noted that the hot chocolate stands were a 
huge success, with less people attending the one close to 
Riverside Drive.     
 

• Winter Fest – Holiday Market 
 

o Administration noted that the Holiday Market ran from 3pm to 
8pm on December 2. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 

Administration 
 
 

 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Striking Committees Meeting I December 5, 2023 
 

3 | P a g e  

 
o Administration noted that it was well attended and the 

vendors were quite happy with the turnout.    
 

o Discussion surrounded perhaps keeping the market open 
later if we run it at the same time as a parade.   
 

o Discussion also surrounded putting up signage on the 
sidewalk at Park Street to announce the market.   

 
 
• Swift-mas Christmas - update 
 

o Administration noted that in the 4 days since the launch of 
the contest, there have been 96 entries, with purchases from 
41 different downtown businesses.   
 

o Administration noted that in addition to the entries there have 
been 2 essay entries.  
 

o Discussion surrounded how the winners will be selected. The 
winners will be determined by random pick and Elev8 Web 
Studio, an independent contractor, will select the winners. 
 

o Discussion surrounded making the announcement of the 
winners on AM-800, Mike & Lisa, in early January 2024. 

 
 
• Security Cameras Grant 
 

o Administration noted that the City of Windsor had brought a 
potential grant to our attention. The grant could potential be 
used for capital expenditures, such as the security cameras. 
 

o Administration noted that Grant application is due on 
December 12, 2023 and the City has asked to see the 
completed application before it is submitted.   
 

o Administration noted that it is a stretch for the DWBIA to 
apply for the grant as it deals with youth gun violence and 
the DWBIA does not in any way deal with this type of issue, 
nor is it our mandate.  

o Administration noted, to complete the Application, 20 to 30 
letters of support would be needed from downtown 
businesses showing how the DWBIA has helped with this 
type of issue.  

 
Administration 

 
 

Administration 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 
 

Administration 
 
 
 

Administration 

UPCOMING MEETING DATES 
 
• DWBIA Board of Directors 

Thursday, December 14, 2023 
 

• Holiday Party 
Thursday. December 14, 2023 

 



DWBIA Meeting Minutes I Striking Committees Meeting I December 5, 2023 
 

4 | P a g e  

 

 

UPCOMING MEETING DATES 
 
• DWBIA Board of Directors 

Thursday, December 14, 2023 
 

• Holiday Party 
Thursday. December 14, 2023 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:15pm 

 


	2023-12-05-Minutes-Striking Committees.pdf
	Responsibility of:
	Agenda and Discussion
	 Benches – update
	o Administration noted that a motion was made at the November 28, 2023 Board of Directors meeting to approve up to $7,000 to add arms to the remaining benches. 
	o Administration noted the hope is to have the arms manufactured by year end and installed early in the new year.  

	 Cigarette Bins – update
	o Administration noted that the questions have been printed and installed on the Cigarette Ballot Bins.
	o Administration noted that the bins are to be installed in six downtown locations on Thursday, December 7 between 6:00-9:00am.
	o Administration noted that a news conference will take place on Thursday, December 7 at 10:30am at The Loose Goose.  
	o Administration noted that there is an area on the DWBIA website where the public can suggest questions to pose on the ballot bins.

	 Santa Claus Parade
	o Administration noted that there was an excellent turnout for the event and how wonderful it was to see people of all ages downtown enjoying the event. 
	o Discussion surrounded whether there was a way to determine economic impact during the hours of the parade. Administration noted the only way to make a determination would be to approach each individual business and ask for their stats for that time frame.  Administration also noted that many businesses are not open to sharing any information.  
	o Mr. MacLeod noted that the hot chocolate stands were a huge success, with less people attending the one close to Riverside Drive.    

	 Winter Fest – Holiday Market
	o Administration noted that the Holiday Market ran from 3pm to 8pm on December 2.
	o Administration noted that it was well attended and the vendors were quite happy with the turnout.   
	o Discussion surrounded perhaps keeping the market open later if we run it at the same time as a parade.  
	o Discussion also surrounded putting up signage on the sidewalk at Park Street to announce the market.  

	 Swift-mas Christmas - update
	o Administration noted that in the 4 days since the launch of the contest, there have been 96 entries, with purchases from 41 different downtown businesses.  
	o Administration noted that in addition to the entries there have been 2 essay entries. 
	o Discussion surrounded how the winners will be selected. The winners will be determined by random pick and Elev8 Web Studio, an independent contractor, will select the winners.
	o Discussion surrounded making the announcement of the winners on AM-800, Mike & Lisa, in early January 2024.

	 Security Cameras Grant
	o Administration noted that the City of Windsor had brought a potential grant to our attention. The grant could potential be used for capital expenditures, such as the security cameras.
	o Administration noted that Grant application is due on December 12, 2023 and the City has asked to see the completed application before it is submitted.  
	o Administration noted that it is a stretch for the DWBIA to apply for the grant as it deals with youth gun violence and the DWBIA does not in any way deal with this type of issue, nor is it our mandate. 
	o Administration noted, to complete the Application, 20 to 30 letters of support would be needed from downtown businesses showing how the DWBIA has helped with this type of issue. 

	 DWBIA Board of DirectorsThursday, December 14, 2023
	 Holiday PartyThursday. December 14, 2023
	 DWBIA Board of DirectorsThursday, December 14, 2023
	 Holiday PartyThursday. December 14, 2023


